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THE PROCEEDING

This public proceeding was instituted by the Commission
on January 17, 1977 pursuant to sections of the Investment
Advisers Act of 1940 and bf the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 (Exchange Act) against respondents Hinkle Northwest, Inc.
(registrant or Hinkle Northwest), a Portland, Oregon broker-

dealer, Ernest F. Hinkle (Hinkle), Kenneth T. LaMear (LaMear),
Dennis B. Reiter (Reiter), Bernard G. Molinari (Molinari), Fred Hogg
(Hogg), and Patrick McGinnils (McGinnis), variously officers

and employees of the broker-dealer, and Jack M. Wied (Wied),
formerly an officer of Ben Franklin Savings and Loan Association
(Ben Franklin) of Portland, Oregon.

The main charges contained in the Order revolve around
two transactions in U.S. Government securitles. These trans-
actions are an alieged purchase by regiétrant in March and
sale in June, 1975 of $25,000,000 par value U.S. Treasury notes
and an alleged purchaée by registrant 1n Auguét and sale in |
September, 1975 of $100,000,000 par value U.S. Tréasury bills.
The purchases and saleéare‘contended to have been made on |
registrant's behalf by Wied in hils capacity as an officer of
Ben Franklin.

Registrant, Hinkle, LaMear‘and Relter are charged with
violations of the bookkeeping requirements of Section 17(a) of
the Exchange Act and Rule 17a-3 in having failed to make appro-.

priate entries to reflect these transactions. Registrant and:
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the same individuals are charged with violations of the net
capital requirements of Section 15(c)(3) of the Exchange
Act and Rule 15c¢3-1 in connection with the first transaction
(i.e., the $25,000,000 transaction in U.S. Treasury notes)
and are charged with failure in violation of Section 17(a)
of the Exchange Act and Rule 17a-11 tc notify the Commission
.and file appropriate reports concerning the condition of the
registrant's records mentioned above and the éffect of the
first transaction upon registrant's net capital. They are
further charged with violating Section 17(a) of the Exchange
Act and Rule'17a-5 in failing to report account balances relating
to the first transaction.A
| Registrant and Reiter are charged with having filed a
false X—17A—5report for the period ending May 31, 1975 in that
it did not include any.accéunt balances relating to the first
transaction.
~In connection with both transactions, registrant, Hinkle,
LaMear, Reiter, Molinari and Wied are charged with violations
of the antifraud provisionsl/ in defrauding Ben Franklin of
its credit and of profits of around $120,000.
In activity unrelated to the government securities trans-
actions, registrant, Hinkle, LaMear, Molinari and Hogg are

variocusly charged with violations of the provisions of Section

_1/ A1l these respondents are charged with violations of Section 10(b) and
‘Rules 10b-5; only the brokerage respondents are charged with 15(c)
and Rule 15¢l1-2 violations.
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5(b)(1) of the Securities Act of 1933 in transmitting
,proSpectuses of certain companies which did not meet the re-
quirements of Section 10 of that Act.

Registrant, LaMear and McGinnis are charged with vio-
lations of Section 12(k) of the Exchange Act in that purchases
of stock of Presley Companies were induced by McGinnis during
a period in which trading in those securities had been
suspended by the Commission.

Finally, registrant, Hinkle and LaMear are charged with
failure to supervise in connection with the prospectus and
suspended security violations.g/

A four-day hearing was held in Portland, Oregon in the
latter part of May 1977. Wled had previously been indicted in
connection‘with the two government securities transactions
for misapplying savings and loan aSsets»of Ben Franklin, per—
sonally benefiting from Ben‘Franklin transactions and making
false entries in its recordé. A bench trial was had before
United States District Court Judge Otto Skopil in February

and March, 1977. U.S. v. John M. Wied, CR 76-233 (D. Ore.).

Largé porticns of the transcript of the criminal trial were
received in evidence in this proceeding pursuant to stipulation

of the parties.

2/ Additional charges in Paragraph N of the Order of violations of anti-
fraud provisions in purchasing registrant's securities from members of
the public without disclosing material facts concerning registrant's
financial condition were dropped by the Division (Tr. 242).
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In accordance with a schedule set at the conclusion of
the hearing, the Division and the parties made post-hearing
filings. Shortly after the last such filing, Judge Skopil
on October 12, 1977, filed an opinion and order in which he
found Wied guilty as charged on all counts.

On motion by the Division which was not opposed, the evidentiary
"record in this proceeding was reopened to receive Judge Skopil's
opinion and orderiin evidence.i/

The findings and conclusions herein are based upon the

eviderice as determined from the record and upon observation

of the witnesses.

Background

Hinkle Northwest, Inc., an Oregon corporation, became
registered with the Commission as a broker-oealer on May 31;
1958 and as an inﬁestment adviser on November 9, 1972.
Registrant is a member of the National Associlation of Securities
Dealers, Inc. (NASD), a national securities association registered with
the Commission. Registrant's principal place of business
since 1958 has been in Portland, Oregon. Registrant has
approximately 25 registered representatives and has branch
offices in Salem and Eugene, Oregon. Approximately 80% of

registrant's outstanding shares are owned by insiders.

3/ The Division asserted that the opinion and order were relevant and
material to proper characterization of the government securities
transactions, to certain contentions by respondents of res judicata
and collaterial estoppel and to the sanctions which should be imposed.
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Respondent Ernest F. Hinkle hes been chairman of
registrant's board of directors since 1958 and owns 60% of
registrant's outstanding shares. Hinkle supervises regis-
trant's officers and salesmen.

Respondent Kenneth T. LaMear has been president and
director of registrant since 1972. He was vice-president
of registrant from 1964 to 1972 and owns approximately 20%
of registrant's outstanding shares. LaMear also supervises
registrant's officers and salesmen.

Respondent Dennis B. Reiter since January 1975, has
been secretary-treasurer, a director, and shareholder of
registrant. Reiter's fesponsibilities in 1975 included
preparing registrant's financial statements, bank account
reconcliliations, casn flow statements, and net capital computations.

Respondents Bernard G. Molinari, and Freg'Hogg, from
dates prior to January 1, 1975 to the present, have been
salesmen at registrant's Portland, office and are regis-
tered with the NASD as registered representatives.

Respondent Patrick McGinnis, from a date prior to January
1, 1975 to August 1976, was a salesman at registrant's
Portland office and registered with the NASD as a
registered representative. Since August 1976 McGinnis had been
a salesman for another registered broker-dealer located in

Portland.
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Since a date prior to January 1, 1975, Benjamin

Franklin Savings and Loan Association has been a federally
chartered savings and loan assoclation maintaining its
principal place of business in Portland. From January
1975 to June 1976, respondent Jack M.Wied of Portland, OQregon,
was a vice-president of Ben Franklin and its treasurer. Since
-June 1976, Wied has been seeking to become associated with
a broker-dealer and/or investment adviser. In 1975, Wied's
duties at Ben Franklin included mahaging the assoclation's
investment and trading portfolio. In this capacity he had
authority to determine'what securities to buy and to sell and

at what prices.

Government Securitles Transactions

In many cases Wled made investments fof-Ben Franklin‘in
U.S. Government securities. One financing device in connection
with the purchase of such securities is known in the industry
as a "reverse repurchase agreement" or "reverse fepo." A
transaction constitutinga "reverse repurchase agreement" from
the standpoint of the seller or lender would be a "repurchase
agreement" from the standpoint of the person on the other side,
the buyer and borrower.

The reverse repo concept was employed by the two broker-
dealer sellers in the two goverﬁment securities transactions
under consideration here. The mechanics of reverse repurchase

agreements are very clearly explained by Judge Skopil in his
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opinion in U.S. v. Wied as follows:

"Reverse Repurchase Agreements

Under the reverse repo concept, a seller in effect loans
to a buyer the money necessary to purchase a security from
seller. Seller retains a possessory security interest or
pledge in the security pending repayment of the loan.

More specifically, the process works as shown in the
following example. Seller (generally a broker-dealer) sells
buyer a security at a market price of, say, one million dollars.
Buyer immediately resells the security to seller at the same
price. At the same time, buyer agrees to pay interest, accruing
on a daily basis, on the purchase price. The rate of interest
can be either a set rate or one which varies with the market on
an agreed-upon basis. Further, buyer agrees to again buy back
the security at a later time, paying the same price as when ori-
ginally purchased, plus accrued interest. Seller/broker-dealer
later sells the security on the open market on behalf of buyer.
This *unwinding' of the transaction can occur either at a pre-
vidusly agreed-upon time or on notice by a party, depending upon
the arrangement made when the transaction is entered into.

When the reverse repo is to continue to an unspecified date,
subject to belng ‘unwound' at any time upon notice, it is referred
to as an 'open' reverse repo.

At the time of wnwinding, seller and buyer settle. If the
market price of the security has increased to such an extent that
it exceeds the principal (original price) plus accrued interest,
seller pays the excess to buyer, who realizes a gain in that
amount. If, however, the security has decreased in value or if
any increase is less than the accrued interest, then buyer is
liable to seller for the resultingdeficiency.”

In further explanation, the immediate resale by the
buyer to seller at the same price and reflected in a second
4
confirmation establishes the security interest which Judge

Skopil mentions. Thils interest is possessory because the

4/ The first confirmation, of course, reflects the sale by-seller to
buyer.



-8 -
government securities are physically retained by the seller

throughout the transaction.

The First Pennco and Blyth Transactions

In early 1975 an account for Ben Franklin was established
by Wied at registrant in which Ben Franklin dealt in municipal
bonds, and registrant gave valuable advice to Ben Franklin concerning
municipal securities.

Prior to the establishment of that account, Wied and
Molinari had been acquainted in late 1974 on a social basis
and informally discussed the government securities markets.
Wied discussed with Molinari the procedures for buying
government securitles and the mechanics of borrowing funds
against those securities. |

In early March 1975, Wied recommended to Molinari that
a transaction coﬁid at that time be entered intq with a good
rate of return. Wied stated that the government securities
market was in a ppsition where a two-year note could be
purchased advantageously because of the favorable differential
between the price and the current rate for borrowing.

Molinari related the foregolng matters to LaMear, as
an officer and one of the directors of Hinkle Northwest.
LaMear in turn discussed Wied's proposal by telephone with
Hinkle,who was then on vacation in Hawaii. Hinkle gave his
authorization to go ahead with the transaction, and Molilnari

so informed Wied. Wied then proceeded through Ben Franklin
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to enter an order with First Pennco Securities, Inc. (First
Pennco), for the purchase of $25,000,000 of United States
Treasury 6 1/2% notes, due 3-31-77. The purchase was made

on March 27, 1975. The purchase and market price was
$24,921,875.

The purchase price was financed by First Pennco through
a reverse repurchase agreement. Thus, an‘order was entered
at about the same time as the purchase order that Ben
Franklin hed'sold to First Pennco the $25 million in United
States notes. This order established First Pennco's security
interest. At the same time, Ben Franklin agreed to repurchase
the securities from First Pennco at an unspecified future
date at the purchase price. Ben Franklin was also to pay
First Pennco for the use of $24,921,875 for the period during
which the transaction was outstanding af a rate of interest
1/8th percent above First Pennco's varying cost of funds.

The transaction couid be called on 24-hour notice by either
party.

In the course of conversations between Wied and John
Eckstein, Vice President ovairst Penﬁco, Wied told Eckstein
that the transaction was for a customer, Hinkle Northwest.
Wied told Eckstelin that a reason for dolng this was Hinkle
Northwest had assieted him fhe municipal bond market (Tr. 116).
This type of transaction is known as an "accommodation

transaction." Eckstein made the notation "for acet. Hinkle
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Northwest" on an order ticket. Whether the conversations occurred at the
time the transaction was entered into or shortly afterwards
is unclear. Such notations are not regarded by the parties
as effecting 1liability and are merely for the bookkeeping
convenience of the other party to the transaction, in this
case Ben Franklin. 1In any event, the confirmations which
-were prepared and sent contemporaneously with the transaction
bore the name Ben Franklin with no reference to Hinkle
Northwest and were mailed by First Pennco only to Ben Franklin.

Shortly after the transactlon was entered into, a
meeting was held between Hinkle, LaMear, Molinari and Wiéd
at Wied's office m:Baqﬁrmidin. Wied discussed with them the
yield curve and the prospect for gain on the transaction, and
mentioned the rate of interest First Pennco was charging.
Molinarl knew which issue of Treasury notes had,been purchased
and understood the proposed buyer of the securities in the First
Pennco transaction to be registrant through Ben Franklin.
Moiinari told LaMear which issue of Treasury notes had been
purchased and LaMear understood the transaction to be a purchaSe
of notes through Wled at Ben Franklin. Molinari told Hinkle.
which issue of Treasury notes had been purchased. Hinkle
understood the transaction to be a purchase of securities for
registrant's account. .

In March 1975, LaMear told Reiter that fegistrant through

Wied had made a purchase of government securities and that the
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firm was entifled to the gain and responsible for the risk,

which was stated to be approkimately $25,000. This was the
amount of risk Wied had saiduwas'involVed. Molinari informed
Reitér which issue of Treasury notes had been purchased.

Reiter indicated to LaMear and Hinkle that it was his opinion
that,if the company made the purchase, they were

not in a position to record that size transaction on regiStrantis
books and records. ‘ |

vPeriodically, Hinkle checked with Wied on the progress
of the transaction. In adiscussion between Wied and Molinari,
Molinari expressed the firm's concern that the market had
declined. Wied adviéed him that the trénsaction should be held
open for a time.

On June 8, 1975 Wied discussed with Molinari closihg
out the transaction and taking the profit. Wiled recommended
at least a partial closé—out of the transaction to Molinari
and received a telephone call back from Molinari directing
him to close out the entire transaction (Tr. 19, 143-45).

After Molinari's telephone conversation with Wied, con-
firmations indicate that the First Pennco transaction was
"unwound" on June 10, 1975. Since the market value of the
securities at that time was $25,237,107;24, whereas the original
purchase price plus accrued'interest was $25,192,887.98, a
profit of $44,219.26 was realized on a sale by First Pennco

on behalf of the purchaser. A check in this amount was made


http:$25,237,107.24
http:$25,192,887.98
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out and sent to Ben Franklin. Wied endorsed the check to
registrant and hand delivered it and the original First
Pennco confirmations to Hinkle and Molinari.

The First Pennco transaction . was not recorded on Ben
Franklin's books by Wied, nor did Wied report the transaction
to his superiors.

Hinkle gave the $44,219.26 check and First Pennco confirmations
to Reiter and they discussed recording receipt of the check.
Hinkle said the check was to be deposited to the firm's
account. Relter gave the check to the firm's bookkeeper and
instructed him to credit the sum to the miscellaneous income
account. It was so credited.

Later in June, Hinkle mentioned to Wied that he would
like to reward him for arranging the First Pennco transaction.
Wied said that this was unnecessary. Hinkle.and LaMear had
decided that $5,000 bé paid to him. Accordingly, Hinkle
directed the purchase for Wied of 500 shares of Weeden & Co.
stock, which»was worth approximately that amount. To effect
payment Hinkle directed that a check be issued to Wied
for the purchase price. Wied endorsed the check which was
then credited to his account with registrant. Wied accepted
and retained the payment. |

Reitér discussed with Hinklé and LaMear the payment
of a commission to Molinari for arranging theIﬁlst‘Pennuatmnmactidn,

$2,000 was then paid to Molinari.
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In July or August 1975 Wied and Molinari talked about
a second transactlon involving U.S. Treasury bills. Molinari
again understood that registrant would receive the profit
and bear the loss. Molinari told Hinkle, LaMear and Relter
about the broposed transaction.

In a meeting with Molinari, Hinkle and LaMear, Wied
explained that a larger transaction would be necessary in
connection with treasury bills, and Hinkle then authorized
the purchase by Wied of $100,000,000 in U.S. Treasury bills.
Hinkle and Molinari understood the transactlon wculd be
handled in the same manner as that with First Pennco.

Wied then told fepresentatives of Blyth Eastman Dillon
Capital Markets, Inc. of his desire to enter into a trans-
action for $100,000,000 in U.S. Treasury bills. He told them
that the transaction would be for an unidentified party but
that Ben Franklin would stand behind the trade. Wied in
testimony acknowledged that there was a risk to Ben Franklin if
the situation developed into a loss. As he stated, Blyth
was looking to Ben Franklin, and Ben Franklin was looking to
registrant. Blyth demanded additional collateral in connection
with the transaction, and a $1,000,000 Treasury bill owned
by Ben Franklin was pledged.

On August 14, 1975, a transaction for $100,000,000 in
U.S. Treasury bills was entered into between Blyth and Ben
Franklin involving, as in the First Pennco transaction an

agreement to pay interest on a loan of the purchase price,
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a repurchase agreement by Ben Franklin and a reverse
repurchase agreement on the part of Blyth. The Blyth records,
including confirmations sent by Blyth to Ben Franklin,
all refer to Ben Franklin as the purchaser. No reference
was made in these records to Hinkle Northwest. The agreement
was that either party could terminate the transaction on 24-hour notice.

The Blyth transaction was closed out in late September
1975, and a letter was mailed by Blyth to Wied summarizing
tne transaction which resulted in a profit to the~5uyer of
$76,870.03. Wied mailed a copy of the Blyth letter to Hinkle
Northwest, Inc. Hé.then instructed Blyth to wire the profit
to him and stated that he would wire the amount received to
the proper party.

The funds wired to Ben Franklin were recorded as a
debit to Ben Franklin's cash account and credited to the audit
suspense account. The funds were then wired from Ben
Franklin's account to registrantjs account and recorded as
a debit to Ben Franklin's suspense account. No disclosure
was made by Wied to his superilors that the profit on the
Blyth transaction had been channeled through Ben Franklin
to registrant.

When the $76,870.03 profit from the Blyth transaction
was wired to reglstrant in September 1975, Reiter instructed
the bookkeeper to record the income in the same account as

the receipt from the First Pennco transaction. Hinkle had


http:$76,870.03
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so instructed Reiter. No further ehtries were made 1in
‘registrant's books and records to reflect the Blyth transaction.

Shortly éfter the profit from the Blyth transaction waé
received by registrant, Molinari told Wied in a telephone
converSétioh'that the firm wanted to compensate him for
arranging the transaction. Wied told Molinari to put the
money ifito his bank account, and Molinari obtained his
‘acbount numbér; Hinkle, LaMear and Reiter discussed the
amount'té be paid to Wied. Reiter instructed the bookkeéper
to prepare‘a check in the amount of $16,200, which |
was.negotiated‘to Wied's account. For arranging the trans-.
action with Wied, Moiinari was paid $7,300, whiéh was added
by Reiter to'Molinari'srmonthly commission check. Hinkle
received a bonus of 515,000 at the same time.

Wiéd did have general authority frém'Ben Franklin to
enter into accommodation transactions for third parties but

had no authority to enter into the type of transactions

- under examination here involving a third party of limited

resources and ligbility for Ben Franklin over extended periods.
On December 5, 1975, .two compliance examiners for the

Commission's Seattle Regional Office aftér having examined

registrant's books and records had.a discussion 1in registrant's

office with Hinkle and Relter. Hinkle was asked the source

of the two entries to the miscellaneous income account, sums

of approximately $U44,000 and $76,000 respectively. Hinkle
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replied that the sums represented compensation for investment
advice given to Ben Franklin in connection with Ben Franklin's
tfansactions in certain U;S._Government securities. Prior
to the conference with the two examiners, Hinkle and Reiter
had discussed the pending meeting and Hinkle had advised Reiter,
if asked, to describe the miscellaneous account entries as
‘payments for investment advice. Reiter told the examiners
that the income credits were investment advisory fees received
in regard to U.S. Government securities. At that time, Hinkle
understood the sums to represent the profit received on the
transactions with First Pennco and Blyth. Reiter presumed
that part of the sum in tHe miscellaneous income account was
derived from profits in the U.S. Government securities transactions.

It was not until Januéry 1976, afterlearning of the :inferest
of the SEC staff‘in the transaction that‘Wiedvrequested
"corrected" confirmations from both First Pennco and Blyth to
show an interest 1n the transactions on the part of Hinkle
Nofthwest. It is clear that neither broker would have entered
into the transaction if 1t had been dealing solely with Hinkle
Northwest. In January, 1976 and as a result of inquiries
pursuant to the SEC investigation, counsel for Ben Franklin was assured
by Wied that these were ordinary accommodation transactions and was fur-
ther not told by him about the payments he had received. Counsel for.
Hinkle Northwest was told at that time by Wied that what was involved
"was a typical accommodation transaction, that his people at the company

knew about it, that they approved it, . . . ." (Tr. 792)
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After obtaining in June 1976 full information concerning
these transactions, Ben Franklin terminated Wied's employment.

In June, 1976 registrant received a letter from counsel
for Ben Franklin demanding a return of ‘the profits received
on the Blyth and Pennco transactions on the basis that Ben
Franklin S "credit and credibility in the market place" had
~been utilized and that Ben Franklin "has never had the legal
‘right or authority to’engage in the business of a broker-
dealer." (Div. Enhibit T 22). An agreement was executed on
June 15, 1976 statinglthat.the credit of Ben Franklin was |
used to make purchases of U S. Government securities and that
registrant would remit to Ben Franklin $112,691 before July
15, 1976. Such payment was made. The $120,000 profit that
registrantbreceivedvWas thus reduced by about $8,000 on the
basis of aniargument of counsel for registrant that it was
’Wiedgba Ben Franklin.employee, who had "led us down the path
andeas'now causing.us a great deal of worry'in legal fees,

and the like"™ (Tr. 795).

Bookkeeping Violations

The Divis1on charges that Section 17(a) and Rule 17a-3
have been violated in connection'with the two government
securities transactions. The Division contention is that

registrant effected purchases and sales of securities and
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incurred indebtedness and thesé events should have been,
but were not, recorded upon its books and records, Under
this theory, Wied, acting as agent for registrant and
empIOying Ben Franklin's credit and facilities, effected
the transactions on registrant's behalf.

The Hinkle respondents argue in opposition (1) that the
relationship of agency was not’present, since the essential element of control
by the principal over the agent was 1acking;i/ (2) that, \
unless First Pennco and Blyth could have sued registrant
directly as a result of Wied's representaﬁion,
registrant made no purchases and sales (see Hinkie Respondent's
Post-trial Memorandum, p.nll); and (3) that to regard regis-
trant as aAprincipal in these transactions 1s inconsistent
with the contentlons of the Justice Department and‘the decision
of Judge Skoplil in the criminal case and thefefore precluded
under the doctrines of res judicata and collateral estoppel.

Contrary to the "lack of control™ argument, Registrant
exérted the same type of control that a customer purchasing
and selling securlties usually exerts. That Wied possessed
superior skllls and knowledge concerning the transactions, does
not mean that he could not have acted as an agent any more

than such factors would disqualify an ordinary stock broker

5/ Citing the Restatement of Agency 2d (1958) §§'s 1, 12,220.
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from acting as an agent for his customer. In many respects
the relationship resembles that of a stock broker and his customer,
and it 1s significant that the Ben Franklin demand upon Hinkle
is premised upon the realization that its facilities and
credit had been employed improperly in a brokerage capacity.

The second contention, that a legal relationship of
direct 1liabllity must have existed between the two brokers
(First Pennco and Blyth) as against registrant and did not,
is in my oplnion irrelevant. The record is cieaf that both
brokers relied only upon the Ben Franklin credit and had no
interest in the identity of thé firm for whovaiéd was acting.
That some rule of law may orvmay not'haVe made registrant
directly, rather than indirectly, liable to>them should have ﬁo
bearing upon its bbligation to record thése transactions. In
féct, registﬁént may well have been diréctly responsible as a

matter of law in the First Pennco transaction, depending upon

when Wled informed Eckstein that he was acting for
6/

registrant._ However, such considerations are clearly out-
side what should be the proper focus of inquiry.
The focus should be on whether registrant had the rights and obligations

of a principal and purchaser of these securities. In the First Pennco

trénsactionvit is clear that registrant authorized the purchase, followed

§/ It is unclear whether Wied informed Eckstein in the First Pennco trans-~
action that he was acting for registrant before or after the transaction
was entered into. Assuming that such'notice was first given after the
contract was made, registrant would have truly been an undisclosed :
principal. Restatement of Agency 2d §4 (1958). An undisclosed (CONTINUED
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its progress, made the decislon to sell and at all times

was at risk on the transaction—in all respects in the same
fashion as an ordinary principal and purchaser. .The Blyth
transaction was understood to be handled in the same fashion
as Pirst Pennco. Registrant was no less a principal

and purchaser because its liabilities were to Ben Franklin -
rather than directly to the two broker-dealers.

As to the third contention above, there is no inconsistency
between the position taken here and the Justice Department's
position and Judge Skopil's decision. In the face of an argu-
ment by defendant Wied that Hinkle Northwest was the directly
responsiblebprincipal in the transactions‘with the two broker-
dealers and not Ben Franklin, Judge Skopil held that Ben Franklin was
.ét risk,as the Justice Department contended. This is in agree-
ment with the position taken here.

The Hinkle respondents also contend that they were not
well enough infdrmed about the transactions and did not have
the necessary documentation to record them. However, they
correctly understood the transactions to be purchases, and
-as the Division points out, it is inconcelvable that after
30 years 1n the business they should not be aware that purchases
of securities required bookkeeping entries. Thelr misrepre-

tations to Commission inspectors also indicate that the Hinkle

6/ (Continued)
principal would have been directly liable since under conventional agency
law. after the identity of an undisclosed principal is made known, the
third party has an option to hold either the agent or the principal liable
on the contract, Id. at §186.

Conversely, even in the situtation where a full-fledged, disclosed princi-
pal is involved, the agent and the third party may agree that the contract
is only that of the agent. Id. at §145.
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respondents knew that the transactions had been improperly
1/ :
8/

Accordingly, I conclude that registrant wilfully  vio-

treated.

lated Section 17(a) of the Exchange Act and Rule 17a-3 and
Hinkle, LaMear and Relter wilfully aided and abetted such
violations 1n failing properly to record the First Pennco

and Blyth transactions.

Net Capital and Rule 17a-11 Violations

The record clearly shows that during the period within
which net capital violations are charged registrant was engaged
in a general securities business which made use of the
mails.

During that period and on the dates of April 4, 11, 18,
25, and 30, 1975 and even when interest payable by registrant
is disregarded, the First Pennco transaction reflected |
unrealized losses ranging from over $277,000 to over $330,000.
These losses resulted from the fact that the price which could
have been realized for the notes plus accrued interest to

the purchaser was exceeded by registrant's basic indebtedness

7/ The Hinkle respondents contend that no misrepresentations were made,
since they regarded the profits on the two transactions as payments for
prior investment advice on municipal bonds. Even assuming that Hinkle
and Reiter did not refer to U.S. Government securities as Commission
Investigators recall, a misrepresentation occurred in view of their
fallure to disclose the underlying facts concerning such payments when
such facts were so clearly relevant to the Commission inquiry.

8/ As the Divislon points out at p. 34 of its Brief, a finding of wilfulness
within the meaning of Section 15(b) of the Exchange Act does not require
intent to violate the law. Samuel H. Sloan, Securities Exchange Act Rel.
11376 (April 28, 1975), 6 SEC Docket 772, n. 14; Haight & Co., Inc., 44
SEC 481, 507 (1971). It is enough to show that the act which constituted
the violation was intentionally committed and that it was registrant's
respongibili%y to grevent its happening. Joseph Elkind, SFA Rel. 12u85
(May 26, 1976), 9 SEC Docket 736, 737.
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thereon. It was this type of potential loss which was the
subject of Molinari's conversations with Wied during the
period the transaction was open.

If these unrealized losses had been given appropriate
effect on the registrant's books and records on the dates
stated, registrant would have needed additional capital to
achieve compliance with the Net Capital Rule in amounts
ranging from over $80,000 to over $174,000.

As the Division points out, it is the expcsure of customers
to such risks that the Net Capital Rule is designed to prevent.

M.V. Gray Investments, Inc., 4l S.E.C. 567, 573 (1971);

Blaise D'Antoni & Assoc¢iates, Inc. v. S.E.C., 289 F.2d4 276,

277 (5th Cir. 1961).
Accordingly, I conclude that registrant was in wilful
- violation of Section 15(c)(3) of the Exchangé Act and Rule
15¢3-1. As the Division further contends Hinkle, LaMear and
Réiter, by causing registrant to fail'properly to compute
neﬁ capital, wilfully aided and abetted such violations.
Section 17(a) and the Exchange Act ahd Rule 17a-11 re-
"quire that broker-dealers whose net capitai at any time is
less than the minimum,.give telegraphic notice of such

deficiency and, within 24 hours of such notice, file a
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report of financial condition. No such notices or filings
were made here.
I conclude that registrant wilfully‘violatéd Section
17(a) of the Exchange Act and Rule 17a-11 and that Hinkle,

LaMear and Reliter were wilful aiders and abettors.

X-17A-5
The registrant's X-17A4A-5 Report filed July 28, 1975 and

speaking as May 31, 1975 diq not disclose the First Pennco
repurchase transaction. The report was swornlto by Reiter.
Hinkle, LaMear and Reiter,as registrant's principals, were
aware of the underlying facts. An authoritative work on
broker-dealer accounting clearly stated that repurchase
arrangements were to be.repofted._g/

| I conclude that registrant wilfuliy violated Section 17(a)
and Rule 17a-5 in filing a false report which did not dis-
close the account balances relating to the outstanding First
Pennco transaction and that Hinkle, LaMear and Reiter wilfully
aided and abetted such violation. |

I further conclude upon the same facts that a basis for

sanction exists under Section 15(b)(4)(A) of the Exchange Act

9/ Audits of Brokers and Dealers in Securities prepared by the Committee
on . Stockbrokerage Auditing, American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, (1973) stated at p. 57 with respect to the X-17A-5 Report;

"Securities sold by the brokerage concerns under repurchase
agreements are required to be set forth in questions 3 and
10 of Answers to Financial Questlommaire. These securities
should be reported with trading and investment accounts, at
market value, In the statement of financial condition with
the repurchase cost reflected as a liability."
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in that registrant wilfully made and Relter caused registrant

to file a false X-17A-5 report.

Antifraud Violations

In connection with the two government securities trans-
actions, the Division has charged registrant, Hiﬁkle, LaMear,
Reiter, Molinafi and Wied with wilful vioclations of the anti-
vfraud provisions. The Division claims that there was a
common scheme on the part of the above respondents to defraud
Ben Franklin.

The Divisicn relies upon the fact that Ben Franklin facilities
were utilized without its knowledge and that Wied and other
alleged schemers received compensation. As the Division
states, "In essence, Franklin had no knowledge of the trans-
action engaged in for registrant's vbenefit;»yet risked its
credit on the transactions" (Division Brief pp. 46-47). The
Division contends that the fact that its credit
was used is demonstrably material, because as soon as Ben
Franklin found out the facts 1t demanded the return of the
profits.

In opposition, Wied argues(as he did in the criminal
case)that the transactions were not those of Ben Franklin but
were accommodation transactions for HinkKle Northwest which he had full
authority to effect. Wied's testimony that Ben Frahklinrwas
not at risk in the two transactions is contrary to the testimony

of the First Pennco and Blyth witnesses, to the documentation
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for these transactions, both original and corrected, and
torcommon sense. The record 1s also clear that Wied had no
authority to éffect accommodation transactions of the duration
involved here for small broker-dealers such as registrant.
Wied'é testimony in both these respects is specifically
not credited. |
10/
The Hinkle respondents argue generally in connection
with the fraud chérges that scienter, 1n the sense of specific

intent to defraud, must be shown under the Supreme Court

decision in Ernst & Ernst v. Hochfelder, 425 U.S. 185 (1976),

and that proof of these charges must be "clear and convincing"

in accordance with Collins Corp. v. S.E.C., CCH Fed. Sec.

L. Rep. §96,122 (D.C. Cir. Aug. 13, 1977).
The Commission has indicated that scienter need not be

proven in administrative proceedings. Steadman Security

Corporation, 12 SEC Docket 1041, 1043, 1050-1051 (June 29,

1977).
However, the "clear and convincing" standard of the
Collins case 1s applicable to this proceeding insofar'as
the ffaud charges are concerned. Unless and until that standard
is reversed by the Supreme Court, it must be regarded as

controlling, since all disciplinary proceedings under the

10/ The term "Hinkle respondents" here includes only registrant, Hinkle,
LaMear, Reiter and Molinari.
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Advisers Act and Exchange Act may be appealed from the
Commission to the D.C. Circult Court of Appeals.
While the meaning of the new standard 1s not entirely
free from doubt, it obviously requires a greater degree of

certainty than the previous standard, "preponderance of

11/ ‘ ,
the evidence." A leading comment contends the new standard

means ‘"highly probably true" and this meaning is adopted
12/
here.

As the Commission has stated with respect to the elements

of a scheme to defraud:

"No express 'agreement' 1is necessary to establish the
existence of a scheme to defraud. It is enough that each
of the individual respondents knowingly joined or partici-
pated in a common undertaking that he knew or should have
known was fraudulent. Haight & Company, 44 S.E.C. 481, 497
(1971); see also Atlantic Equities Company, 43 S.E.C. 354,
360 (1967);Kamen & Company, 43 S.E.C. 97, 108 (1966). 13/

11/ 30 Am. Jur., Evidence 2d §1168.

12/ McBaine, Burden of Proof: Degrees of Belief, 32 Calif. L. Rev. 242,
246, 253-25I (19&4) states as to the "clear and convincing " formula

"The most that can be done in these cases . . . is to adopt a
rule that the litigant who bears the burden must induce belief
in the minds of the judge or jury that the facts which he asserts
are not merely probably true, but that they are highly probably
true, yet not require him to discharge the greater burden of
persuading them that they are almost certainly true, true beyond
a reasonable doubt, or are certainly true."

13/ ‘There 1s considerableparallel authority with respecttoimplied rights of
~ action in cases prior to Hochfelder that conduct which is neither ‘
deliberate nor negligent does not violate Rule 10b-5. Bromberg,

Securities Iaw: Fraud, SEC Rule 10b-5 §8.4 (630).
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I have concluded under the Collins standard that Wied
wilfully violated the antifraud provisions with which he
is charged. Despite his denilals, it is cléar that Wied not
only should have known but, in fact, knew that the transactions
in which he pledged Ben Franklin's credit were beyond his
authority and 1improper. He attempted to coneceal both trans—
actions by noﬁ entering them on Ben Franklin's records, and he
concealed his compensation by the Hinkle-respondents even
in the face of an 1lnquiry by his superiors as a result of the
Staff investigation in January, 1976. There can be no
doﬁbt that Wied knowingly and deliberately engaged in abscheme
to defraud Ben Frankiin. |
In applying the Collins standard to tﬁe Hinkle respondents,
more difficult questions arise. As the Division contends,
the essence,of the scheme was to use BeﬁvFranklin's credit and
facilities’without its knowledge for the beﬂefit of others.
The Division argues that the fact that the Hinkle respondents
knew or should have known they were participating in a
fraudulent scheme may be inferred from the circumstances,vnamely,v
that they knew Wied was using Ben Franklin's credit and facilities,
.that they deceived Commission investigators concerning the
payments they received and that they compensated Wied for
arranging the transactions. It 1s further argued that in
returning the profits on the two transactions to Ben Franklin the

Hinkle respondents have admitted that their actions were wrongful.
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The point is made that if they had '"no intent to
conceal a fraud, they would have been forthright" (Division Brief
p. 48) in replying to Staff inquiries. However, it does
not necessarily follow that theif misrepresentation was
to conceal fraud. It may be inferred with almost equal
force that they tried to create a false impression solely
"to conceal the bookkeeping, net capital and other violationé.

Ben Franklin had been benefited by advice obtained by
Wied from Hinkle personnel in early 1975 concerning municipal
bonds, so that it would not have seemed inappropriate to the
Hinkle respondents for Wied to suggest reciprocating or "accommo-
dation'"transactions to be effeébed through Ben Franklin tobtenefit registrant.
it is clear that the transactions were initiated by Wied.
It might further be added that Wied was a corporate officer,
vice president and treasurer, of Ben IFranklin and an acknowledged
expert in the area of govefnment bond transactlons. It will
bé recalled that as late as January 1976 and after the Staff
investigation was 1in progress - Wied had been able to convince
counsel for registrant that the transactions were typical
ones and that his superiors knew about them and approved them.
At the same time he had convinced counsel for Ben Franklin
that nothing out of the ordinary had occurred. That he may
have sopersuaded the Hinkle respondents Inearly 1975dces not seem
an unreasonable conclusion. It does not appear that the

Hinkle respondents had any contact with any Ben Franklin
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personnel other than Wied at any time.

The Hinkle respondents claim that they did not khow that
the traﬂsactions were not recorded in Ben Franklin's books and
records, nor that Wied did not inform his superiors concerning
the transactions. There is nothing in the record to indicate
they ‘did know,and in view of the above factors it does not
appear to have been established that they should have known.
That they returned the profits is not a concession that they
were guilty of fraud.

While the payments to Wied were certainly~improper in
that they created a conflict of Interest for him%ﬂ/ it does
not follow from the fact of fhe payments that the Hinkle respondents
knew or should have known that Wied had no authority to enter into accommoda-
tlon transactions of extended duration for smaller broker-dealers.

Under all the circumstances, I do not believe
that 1t has been clearly and convincingly established that
the Hinkle respondents knew or should have known that Ben
Franklin's credit and facilities were being used without 1its
knowledge or authorization.

Accordingly, while I conclude that Wied wilfully violated Section
10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5, I further con-
clude that the'Hinkle'respondents did not wilfully violate

the antifraud provisions with which they are charged, Sections

14/ No other objects of his bounty were compensating him (Tr. 216-17).
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10(b) and 15(c) of the Exchange Act and Rules1l0b-5 and
15c¢1-2. These charges against the Hinkle respondents are

therefore dismissed.

Section 5(b)(1l) of the Securities Act

The Division has charged that mailings made by Hinkle,
LaMear, Molinari and Hogg constitute violations of Section
5(b){1). As the Division states, that section makes it un-
lawfui-to mail a prospectus relating to any security with
respect to which a registration statement has been filed
unless the prospectus meets the requirements of Section 10
of the Securities Act. A ."prospectus" is defined by Section
2(10) of the Securities Act as any letter or communication
which offers any security for sale. Section 2(e) of that
Act defines an offer to include "every attempt or offer to
dispose of, or solicitation of an offer to buy, a security. .
for value." Section 10 requires that a prospectus contain
the information contained in a registration statement with
specified exceptions.

The Hinkle respondents do not dispute the proposed findings
of the Division relating to these charges. These agreed
findings are as follows: -Hogg,‘a salesman for fegistrant,
"holds-periodic investment seminars for members of the public.
He invites attendance at the seminars by mailing invitations
and advertising in the local Portland newspapers a week in

advance of the presentation.
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"On August 1, 1975, Pacific Power & Light Company, an
Oregon corporation; filed a registration statement on Form
S-1 with the Commission, pursuant to the Securities Act,
covering 3,000,000 shares of its common stock. .Such regis-
tration statement, as amendéd, became effective on September
4, 1975. Prior to September 4, 1975, Hogg caused his
secretary tO‘mail to approximately 500 persons on a mailing
1ist/an invitatibn which he drafted regarding_anbinvestmént.
seminar on September 9, 1975. The invitation was rgviewed:
by LaMear before mailing. The invitation states withbrespect
tb Pacific Power and Light Company, "My advice - Buy'top
quality stocks that are yielding better than bankviﬁtérest.
Call-and’resérve some Pacific Power &.light. Prospectuses
are'avéilable.“ (Div. T 31) |

én NovemberIS, 1975, SuperValu Stores, Inc., a Minnesota
Corporatioh, filed a registration statement on Form S-liwith-
the Commission, pursuant to the Securities Act, covering |
600,000 shares of its common stock. Such registrationistate-
pent as amended became effective on November 25, 1975. On
Qr'about Ndvember 1, 1975 Hogg caused his secrétary to mail
an invitation which he‘drafted regarding an investment seminar
| on November 6, 1975 to approximately 500 persons on a
mailing 1list. The invitation states with respect to SuperValu
Stores, Inc.,"An underwriting is coming this month. Don't h
pass it Up.ﬁ (Div. T. 32)

On August 26, 1975, R.L. Burns Corporation (Burns), a
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Delaware corporation, filed a registration statement on Form Sfl with>the
Commission, pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933 covering 450,000 shares of
its éonnmn stock. Such registration statement became effective on September
25, 1975.

On or about Séptember_l?, 1975, LaMear, Hiﬁkle.and Mqlinari mailed iden-
ticalyletters except fqr the signatures concerning Burns. laMear caused a Bums
letter bearing his signature.to be mailed to é mailing list of approxiﬁately
200 persons. Molinari saw the letter LaMear had prepared and asked if he could
send the same lettéf. Molinari then directed his secretéryin sendthé letterbearing
his‘éignature to é mailing list of 25 to 50 persons. Hinkle mailed the'same
letter bearing his signature to approximately 200 persons onya mailing list.

The letter sent by laMear, Hinkle and Molinari (Div. T. 20, 24, 29)
states,in part:

"If'you are interested in participating in the underwriting, please

call your indicationsof interest to me as soon as possible. The

underwriting is scheduled for September 24 and, as always, -the early

~orders get the stock on all successful foerings.”

It should be noted fhat each of the three conﬁunications,which are
quoﬁed from,also contains a "hard sell" type of "sales‘pitéh" for the
particular security. PFurther, LaMear testified that he knew that these types of
commmnications were imprbper. V

The Hihkle respondents contend that "offers to sell" are not involved. In

view of the broad definition in the statute, this argpnént must be rejected.

| Franklin, Meyer & Barnett, 37 S.E.C. 46, 49, 52 (1956); Bankers Securities Co.,

Ire., 6 S.E.C. 631,634-35 (1940)3 G.J. Mitchell,Jr., Co. , 40 S.E.C. 409, U4 (1060).

Accordingly; I conclude that registraht Hinkle, LaMear and Molinari wil-

' fully violated Section 5(b)(1) of the Securities Act in respect to the Burns
letter. I further conclude fhat registrant, LaMeaf and Hogg wilfully violated
that section with respect to the Pacific Power cormunication. The SuperValu
mailing occurred prior to the filing of the registration statement and therefore

is not technicaliy a Section 5(b)(1) violation. This charge is dismissed.
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Inducing Purchases of Presley Stock

McGinnis and LaMear are charged with aiding and abetting
a violation of Section 12(k) of the‘Exchange'Act. Registrant

is charged with a direct violation. Section 12(k) provides
in pertinent part:

"No . . . broker . . . shall make use of the mails or any means

or instrumentality of interstate commerce to effect any trans-

action in, or to induce the purchase or sale of, any security in

which trading is . . . suspended."

The essential facts with respect to these charges are

found to be as the Division has proposed and are as follows:

n March 25, 1976, the Camission suspended exchange and over-the-counter
trading in the securities of Presley Carpanies (Presley), a California corporationfor
~ a ten—day periodending an April 3, 1976. Thereafter, the suspensionwas contimedby
successive 10-day "renewal" or "roll-over" suspensions until May 23, 1976.

In March or early April 1976, McGinnis asked LaMear's

permission‘to mail an article appearing in California Business

and a Standardr& Poor's sheet on Presley. LaMear told
McGinnis that his opinion of the Presley stpck was that it was
a plece of junk. However, McGinnis told LaMear that he had
a clearance letter from the NASD, and LaMear relented. LaMear
and McGinnls knew or should'have known that trading of Presley
stock had been suspended.

On or about April U4, 1976, McGinnis caused his secretary
to mall coples of the Presley articles along with his business
card to appfoximately»BOO persons to generate business. Sub-

sequent to the mailing, McGinnis contacted 8 or 10 clients
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regarding Presley. 1In early April, McGinnis receilved telephone
calls from approximately six personsvﬁtklorders to buy Presley
stock. McGinnis then wrote order tickets for these
persons for Quantities of Presley‘stock, with the intentibn of
executing the order when the suspension was lifted.

On April 8, 1976, LaMear spoke with counsel for registrant
who advised him to refrain from activity in Présley stock
because of SEC conéern. LaMear then told McGinnis he could
not engage in trading Presley even when the suspension was
lJifted. After speaking to LaMear, MecGinnls destroyed the order
:tickets he had written.

Counsel for McGinnis.contends‘that both that the facts
and the law do not support the Division's theory of violation.

‘As to the facts, counsel first argues that the "order
tiéketS” which were written were in blank with no customers'
‘names or amounts. MeGinnis did so testify, but this testimony
is not credited, both because it is inherently incredible and because it
is‘contrary to other credited testimony. His statements are
contradicted on the record by two staff members who testified
concerning conversations with McGinnis during the investigation.
He told them both that he had taken 5 or 6 orders after having
received telephone calls. One staff member‘recalled that
McGinnis stated he had written up "order tickets" (Tr. 610)
for 800 shares and that, after he had been advised that he was

involved in a possible violation of the statute, he called up
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these clients and told them be couldﬁ't accept any orders
"and had torn up the tickets and thrown them away. |

Counsel for McGinnis also argues on a factual score
thaf the record shows that orders were not taken, since the

investigator's notes of the conversation with MeGinnis con-

tains the statement "not orders, indications of interest
(Reep:vH, Ex. 3). However, the record is clear that this
note referred to some 8 or 10 calls whichwere 1nitiated by
McGinnis -- not to the 5 or 6 orders which wefe written up
aftef ealls to McGinnis by customers.

Cqunsel contends as a legal argument that, aseuming
customers placed orders and thatrorder tickets were written

up for these customers for speeific quantities which were

to be implemented when the suspension was lifted, no violation »

has been shown because this does not cohstitute inducingvthe
purchase of any security. The argument 1s that no violation
for iﬁducing occurs, unless a purchase take place as a result.
The short answer is that a "purchase" in the sense of a
"contract to . . . purchase." 15/did occur when McGinnis
received a commitment to buy from his customers which was
reflected in the order tickets he prepared. Nbram@r it 1s<ﬂear
that the perceived purpose of the statutory provision -- to

prevent trading in suspended securities (where frequently

essential investor information is lacking) -- 1s contravened

15/ The Exchange Act in Section 3 provides:

"When used in this title, unless the context otherwise requires——
(13) the term 'buy' and 'purchase' each include any contract
to buy, purchase or otherwise acquire."

"
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by the successful persuasive activities of McGinnis.

Wilful violations did in my view occur if a valid suspension
order by the Commission is assumed. However, as counsel
points out, such an assumption may not be justified. The
alleged violations took place not during the original 10-day
period, but during a renewal or "roll-o&er" period.

-Sloan v. S.E,C., 547 F.2d 152 (24 Cir. 1976),has declared

such roll-over suspensions "plainly" beyond the Commission's
authority and has directed it "to discontinue forthwitﬂ its
adoption and use of successive ten-day suspension orders to
order the suspension of trading of a security for an extended
period, i.e., in excess of ten days." Id. at 158 . The
Commission has been abiding by that judgment and will con-
tinue to do so unless and until the Supreme. Court reverses
the Second Cifcuit and validates the "roll-over" suspension.

S.E.C. v. Sloan, No. 76-1607, U.S. Supreme Court, On Petition for

Certiorari, Reply Memorandum for the Commission, p. 2.

The question of the validity of renewal suspensions is
is now pending before the Supreme Court since it
granted certiorari in the §l9§§ casé%é/ Under these
circumstances, I agree with counsel's statement that "any
attempt to discipline McGinnis for such activities is clearly

inappropriate . . . ." (McGinnis Brief, p. 11) -- at least

at this time.

16/ 38 CCH S.Ct. Bull. p. B90O (Oct. 17, 1977).
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>I believe that McGinnis' conduct would justify a}three-

day suspension, but that it should only be imposed if and

- when the Sﬁpreme Court in the'§l9§§ case validates "roll-over"

| suspensions. Accordingly, my order will so proVidé;lZ/

Of course, if no such action occurs in the disposition of the

Sloan case by the Supreme Court, the charges with respect to

McGinnis should be dismissed.

Failure to Supervise

The Order charges Hinkle with failure peasonably
to supervise in connection ﬁith the Pacific Power prospec-
tus violation. It is not disputed that Hinkle as
Chairman of the Board of Directors had supervisory responsi-
- bilities, and that the Hogg seminars were a frequent
event. It is clear that supervision waé lax..

Acéordingly, I conclude that Hinkie failed rea-
sonably to.éupervise in connection with»the Pacific Power
matter.

Preponderance of the evidence was the standard ofvproof
applied to charges othervthan those involving fraud. Appli-
cation of‘the clear and convincing standard, however, would

not have changed the result.

17/ This charge also directly involves registrant and LaMear and indirectly
involves registrant, Hinkle, and LaMear through an alleged failure
of supervision. To be consistent, sanctions imposed upon persons other
than McGinnis insofar as they arebased upon this  conduct should like-
wise be contingent upon the Supreme Court's decision in the Sloan case.
However, insofar as these other persons are concerned, this
activity is merely cumulative and would have no effect upon the sanctions.
Thnerefore, no such provision has been made.
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Publiec Interest

The Division has proposed the following sanctions: that
registrant be suspended from engaging in under-
writings for 30 days; that Hinkle, LaMear and Wied be barred
from association with a broker-dealer for 12 months and
thereafter permitted to apply to the Commission for association
in a non-supervisory capacity, that Reiter be suspended for
6 mdnths, Molinari for 3 months, and Hogg and McGinnis for
10 days. each.

Respondents argue that the proposed sanctions
are far too harsh. Counsel for Wied objects that
Wied's sanction 1s disproportionate because he has not been
involved in and has no experience in the securities industry
and he was not charged with many of the Vioiations which
the other respondents are alleged to have committed.

Counsel for the Hinkle respondents argue that this is
a first offense, that the transactions involved here were very
complicated and never adequately understood by them, that no
third persons were injured, and that registrant has operated
as a responsible local brokerage house for 20 years and eéch
of the respondents depends for his livelihood upon working in
this business.

| Prior diéciplinary action against respondents may, as

the Staff contends, be considered in imposing sanctions.
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R. H. Johnson & Co. v. S.E.C., 198 690, 697 (2d Cir.

1952); Transmittal Securities Corp., 44 S.E.C. 805, 808

(1972). In two fairly recent instagces Hinkle respondents
have been sanctioned by the NASD. s In May 1974, regis-
trant was censured and fined $500 for recordkeeping and
rule violafions. In January 1976, registrant, LaMear
and Reiter were censured and fined $25000 jointiy and
severally in connection with charges of recordkeeping vio-
lations and failure to make timely reports. While these
are serious matters, they do not involve fraudulent
conduct. |

As recommended by the Division and in view of registrant's
public sﬁareholders, a suspension of regisﬁrant‘s.under—
writing acfivities business for a period of 30 days appears
appropriate and will be ordered.Lg/

The Commission has stated that in.imposing sanctions- when
fraud violations are involved we are required "to be mindful

of the fact that the securities business is one in which

opportunities for dishonesty recur constantly. . . ."

18/ In addition, in 1960 registrant's predecessor company was censured and
fined $1,200 by the NASD in cannection with a number of matters.

19/ Such activities constitute about 15 percent of its'buéiness.
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Richard C. Spangler, Inc., Securities Exchange Act Release
20/ '
12104 (February 12, 1976),8 SEC Docket 1257,1266. 1Insofar as

_Wied is concerned, it'is not a mitigating factor that he
has had no experilence in the securities business. It was
hardly necessary for one to be well-versed in the securities
laws to know that the kind of conduct involved hefé was
“ improper. In fact, as Judge Skopil held, his activity also
violated criminal statutes applicable to the savingsvand
loan association business in which he was engaged. In view
of his conviction and the fact that Wied clearly was the
aréhitect’and perpetrator of én illegal scheme, I believe
that a two-year bar with é riéht to become assbciated there-
éfter only in a supervised capacity will best serve the
regulafory purpose. |

Hinkle; LaMear, Reiter, and Molinari ha?e not been found
to'have_wilfully‘violated the antifraud provisions. Ali
other violations under.review, except the matter of the
imﬁroper prospectuses, involve the two U.S. Government securi-
tiés transactions. Counsel stresses the complicated nature
of these transactions as an excuse for failure to observe
regulatory requirements, but it is clear that Hinkle, LaMeaf
and Reiter understood these transactions to be purchases by

registrant with borrowed funds. Had they been genuinely

20/ Remanded on other other grounds, Nassar and Company, Inc., CCH
Current Vol. 996,185 (Oct. 3, 1977 D.C. Cir.)




- 41 -

perplexed as to their effect, it would haverbeen logical
for them to consult firm couﬁsel_or the;f accduntant. They
have not shown any such inquiry. |

The conclusion 1is unévoidable that the proépect of.easy
profit blinded them to regulatorj requifements which would
have presented obstacles. Nevertheless; the government
securities transéctions, which are the moét'serious
vﬁﬂations established, wefe more in,the natﬁre of "mohentary
lapsels] from grace" 2/ than contiﬁuing énd pérvasive illegal
activity. Hinkle with LaMear's assistance has built regis—
trant over a period of many years into a reasonably successful
business employingardxﬁ.38per&xm. Under all the circumstancés,
I believe that to foreclose them from entrepreneural aétivity
after a 12-month bar has e#piréd'would.be unduly harsh and
‘not necessary to achieve the regulatory-purpose. T have con-
cluded that 1l2-month suspensions for Hinkle and LaMear would
be appropriate. I do not believe it necessary to require
Hinkle and LaMear to disposg of their stock interests in
registrant during the-lZ-month period and will so provide in
‘my'order.gg/ : | »

Reiter was actively involved in the bookkeeping, net

capital and false reporting violatlions although, as thé

21/ Richard C. Spangler, Inc., 8 SEC Docket 1257,'1267 (1976).

22/ See Glenn Woo, SEA Release No. 13982 (September 22, 1977), 13 SEC
Docket 187, 150.
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'Divisibn points dut, his conduct is tempered by the fact
that he acted for the most part at the direction of others,
- It is determined that é 3-month suspension is appropriate.
Reiter will likewise not be required to dispose of his
shares in registrant. .

The fraud charges against Molinari have been dismissed.
The only other violation involves the unlawful prospectus
in the R. L. Burns offering. ‘Undér all the cir-
cumstances, T believe 5Fday suspensionsfor both Molinari
and Hogg are appropriate.

The 3-day deferred suspension for McGlnnls has

already been discussed.

Accordingiy, IT IS ORDERED as follows:

(1) Registrant is suspended from underkriting activities
for a period of thirty days;

(2) Wied 1s barred from assoclation with any broker or
dealer, except that after two years from the effective date
of this order he may become assoclated with a broker-dealer
-in a non-supervisory, non-proprietary capacity upon a satis-
factery showing to the Commission that he wiil be adequately
supervised; |

(3)_Hinkle and LaMear are each suspended from association -
with any broker or dealer for twelve months;

(4) Reiter 1is suspended from assoclation with any broker

or dealer for three months;
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[During the applicable periods Hinkle, LaMear and Reitef may_
retain their stock in registrant and collect any dividends
therefrom but may’hot collect any salary or bonus from regis-
trant nor participate in any way (managerial or non—manégerial)
in the activities of registrant.]

(5) Molinari and Hogg afe”each suspended from association
with any broker or dealer for five days;

(6) McGinnis is suspended from association with any
broker or dealer for three days, provided that such suspension
shall not take effect unless and until the United States‘
Supreme Court has validated "roll-over" suspénsions in Sloan v;
S.E.C. (Supreme Court 76-1607) currently pending béforé‘it.
In the event the Supreme Court does n§t3take such action, the
charges against McGinnis‘are-dismissed'and this order suspending
him rescinded. | |

These orders shall become effective in accordance with and
subject to Rule 17(f) of the Commission'é Rules of Practice.

Pursuant to Rule 17(f), this initial decision shall become
the final decision of the Commission as to each party who has
not, within fifteen days after service of this initial decision
upon him, filed a petifion for.review of thils initial decision
pursuant to Rule 17(b), unless the Commission, pursuant'to Ruie
17(c), determines on its own 1n1tiafive4to review this initial

decision as to him. If a party timely files a petition for
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review, or the Commission takes action to review as to a

party, the initial decision shall not become final with
' 24/
respect to that party.

';} AV, 4 )
(l&l)j;;y t:_ .//7a;yj‘;/
Edward B. Wagner N
Administrative Law Judge

Washington, D.C.
December 12, 1977

24/ A1l proposed findings and conclusions submitted by the parties have
been considered, as have thelr contentions. To the extent such
proposals and contentions are consistent with this initial decision,

they are accepted.





